
 
 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL 
Regulatory Committee 
Agenda 
 

Date Thursday 11 June 2020 
 

Time 5.30 pm 
 

Venue Virtual Meeting 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200608/meetings/1940/live_council_meetings_online 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on any item 
involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak 
and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or Lori Hughes in advance of 
the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is  Lori Hughes, email: 
lori.hughes@oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a question at the 
above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the question is submitted to the 
Contact officer by 12 Noon on Monday, 8 June 2020.  The question will be read out 
by the Chair and a response will be provided at the meeting. 
 
4.  FILMING – This meeting will be recorded for live and/or subsequent broadcast on 
the Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where 
there are confidential or exempt items and the footage will be on our website. This 
activity promotes democratic engagement in accordance with section 100A(9) of the 
Local Government Act 1972. The cameras will focus on the proceedings of the 
meeting. As far as possible, this will avoid areas specifically designated for members 
of the public who prefer not to be filmed. Disruptive and anti-social behaviour will 
always be filmed. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law including the 
law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection Act and the law on 
public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL IS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 Councillors Akhtar (Vice-Chair), Garry (Chair), C. Gloster and Murphy 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

Public Document Pack

https://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200608/meetings/1940/live_council_meetings_online
mailto:lori.hughes@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2) 

 The Minutes of the TRO Panel held on 19th March 2020 are attached for 
approval. 

6   Acorn Street, Lees - Objections to Traffic Management Scheme (Pages 3 - 32) 

 To consider objections and representations received to a proposed Traffic 
Management Scheme along Acorn Street, Lees 

 



 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL 
19/03/2020 at 5.30 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Garry (Chair)  
Councillors C. Gloster and Murphy 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Alan Evans Group Solicitor 
 Gary Sutcliffe Traffic and Road Safety Manager 
 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Akhtar.  

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no Items of Urgent Business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 30th 
January 2020 be approved as a correct record. 

6   S119 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - DIVERSION OF DEFINITIVE 
FOOTPATH 264 SADDLEWORTH (PART), A BRANCH 
PROCEEDING NORTHWARD VIA HOLLINS HILL FARM TO 
BRADBURY LANE AND S53(2) WILDLIFE AND 
COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 MODIFICATION OF THE 
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT  

 

The Panel gave consideration to a report that sought approval to 
the making of a Combined Diversion, Modification of the 
Definitive Map and Statement Order for Footpath 264 
Saddleworth (part), a branch proceeding northward via Hollins 
Hill Farm to Bradbury Lane. 
 
The Panel was informed that the Council had received an 
application from the owner of Hollins Hill Farm for the diversion 
of Footpath 264 Saddleworth (part) which passed along the 
drive of Hollins Hill Farm near to the house and farm buildings. 
 
The application had been considered in the light of draft 
guidance on public rights of way passing through gardens and 
farmyards. It was considered that, in the interests of the resident 
and Footpath users, the Footpath should be diverted and that 
Officers be given delegated authority to carry out the necessary 
procedures with a view to confirming the Diversion Order in the 
event that no objections to the Order were received. 
 
Options Considered. 
Option 1: approve the recommendation. Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

Option 2: not approve the recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED that 

1. A Combined Public Path Diversion Order for the diversion 
of Footpath 264 Saddleworth (part) under s119 of the 
Highways Act 1980 as detailed in the report be made and 
Officers be authorised to carry out the necessary 
procedures with a view to confirming the Order in the 
event that no objections are made to the Order. 

2. A Modification Order be made to the Definitive Map and 
Statement for Footpath 264 Saddleworth (part) as 
detailed in the report. 
 

7   OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS 
AND TRAFFIC CALMING - LONDON ROAD/PRINCE 
CHARLIE STREET, DERKER  

 

Consideration was given to a report which asked the Panel to 
consider 2 objections to the current proposal to introduce traffic 
calming on London Road and Prince Charlie St, Derker. Traffic 
calming proposals for Derker Street and Barry Street did not 
receive any objections. A verbal objection to a prohibition of 
waiting on London Road had been resolved following 
consultation with the affected party. 
 
The Panel noted that the original proposals were approved 
under delegated powers on 26 November 2019. Two proposals 
were advertised on 20 December 2019 (traffic calming and 
waiting restrictions), at which time two letters of objection were 
received in relation to the traffic calming element and one verbal 
comment received regarding waiting restrictions at London 
Road / Yates Street). 
 
The Panel gave consideration to the objections received and the 
responses to them. The comments of a Ward Councillor were 
also noted. 
 
Options considered: 
Option 1: To approve the original proposals for traffic calming 
and the amended proposals for waiting restrictions as shown in 
Appendix C of the report.  
Option 2: Not to approve the original proposals. 
 
RESOLVED that, notwithstanding the objections received, the 
Panel approved the introduction of traffic calming on London 
Road and Prince Charlie Street Derker as per the original 
proposal (in addition to Derker Street and Barry Street) shown in 
the schedule within the Delegated Report at Appendix A and 
waiting restrictions at London Road / Yates Street and 
Stoneleigh Road / Prince Charlie Street as now proposed in 
Appendix C. 
 
 

The meeting started at 5.30 pm and ended at 5.43 pm 
 

Page 2



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Reason for Decision 
The purpose of this report is to consider objections and representations received to a 
proposed Traffic Management Scheme along Acorn Street, Lees. 
 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the scheme be approved with amendments detailed at the end of 
this report and the proposed amendments be advertised. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to TRO Panel 

 
Acorn Street, Lees – Objections to Traffic 
Management Scheme 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor A Ur-Rehman, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood 
Services 
 
Officer Contact:  Deputy Chief Executive – People and Place 
 
Report Author: Sarah Robinson, Traffic Engineer 
Ext. 4377 
 
11 June 2020 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  2 

TRO Panel 11 June 2020 
 
Acorn Street, Lees – Objections to Traffic Management Scheme 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 A traffic management scheme along Acorn Street, Lees was approved under delegated 

powers on 9 January 2020; a copy of the approved report is attached at Appendix A. 
 
1.2 The proposal was subsequently advertised and 4 letters of representation have been 

received requesting the provision of additional yellow lines along both Spindle Mews and 
Acorn Street and one letter of objection to the yellow lines along Acorn Street.  The 
correspondence relating to these is attached at Appendix B. 

 
1.3 Acorn Street is fronted by a mixture of residential and commercial properties; some of the 

residents and business owners are experiencing problems with obstructive parking, 
throughout the day, as the street is being used for parking by nearby businesses, overspill 
parking for Lees District Centre, and also as a school parking facility at school arrival and 
departure times. 

 
1.4 The traffic management scheme has been proposed to address a pedestrian safety issue 

identified along Acorn Street.  There is currently an informal crossing point on Acorn Street 
which links the residential properties and the footpath which connects through to Medlock 
Way; this route is used by school children who attend the Hey with Zion and St Edwards 
schools.  It is therefore proposed to provide a zebra crossing facility at this point, together 
with a series of traffic calming features, to provide a safe environment for pedestrians to 
cross.  However, this will also require the removal of on-street parking to ensure the crossing 
facility is safe to use.  To compensate for the loss of parking it also proposed to create a lay-
by parking area within a grassed verge section of Acorn Street, to be used as a general 
parking facility. 

  
1.5  Double yellow lines have been proposed to protect access along Acorn Street, and the side 

roads junctions, and to ensure motorists can observe pedestrians using the crossing facility. 
 
1.6 The objection raised has asked for an additional length of grass verge to be converted to a 

parking lay-by (the length in-between Mellor Street and the crossing facility) as they feel the 
double yellow lines proposed for introduction along this length will be problematic.   Whilst 
the reason for this request in understood, unfortunately, this is not a feasible course of action 
due to the impact it would have on highway safety.  The approach to the crossing facility 
from Mellor Street is on the inside of a bend, and parking along this length, even in a layby, 
would obstruct a motorists view of the facility.  The Police have also specifically asked that 
parking does not take place along this length because of this reason. 

 
1.7 The representations received have requested additional yellow lines along Spindle Mews 

and Acorn Street to remove problematic parking currently being experienced. 
 
  

Page 4



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  3 

2 Justification 
 
2.1 In view of the problematic parking being experienced at other locations, it is felt additional 

double yellow lines should be considered for introduction as detailed in the schedules at 
the end of this report and on drawing number 2376/A3/265/1A.  If the Panel approve the 
amendments, arrangements will be made for the additional lengths of double yellow lines 
to be publicly advertised. 

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1 – Approve and advertise the amended proposal, to improve visibility and access 

along Acorn Street and Spindle Mews. 
 
3.2 Option 2 – To reject the requests made through the representations and allow the 

problematic parking to continue. 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 The preferred option is Option 1. 
 
5 Comments of Saddleworth West and Lees Ward Councillors 
 
5.1 The Ward Members have been consulted and Councillor V Leach and Councillor S Hewitt 

supports the revised proposals. 
 
5.2 Councillor S Al-Hamdani has commented he is supportive of the proposals. 
 

In particular, anything we can do to encourage pedestrian access to the two schools is 
greatly welcomed, as Medlock Way suffers from chronic traffic issues. 
 
It is also worth noting that the Council's tree planting schemes are already struggling to find 
locations in Saddleworth and Lees, and removing potential locations would be an issue, in 
line with the comments recommending the retention of the young trees and verge space. 

 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 These were dealt with in the previous report. 
 
7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 These were dealt with in the previous report. 
 
8 Co-operative Agenda 
 
8.1 In respect of the Traffic management Scheme along Acorn Street there are no Co-operative 

issues or opportunities arising and the proposals are in line with the Council’s Ethical 
Framework. 

 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
9.1 None. 
 

Page 5



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  4 

10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 None 
 
11 IT Implications 
 
11.1 None. 
 
12 Property Implications 
 
12.1 None. 
 
13 Procurement Implications 
 
13.1 None. 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 These were dealt with in the previous report. 
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
15.1 These were dealt with in the previous report 
 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
16.1  No 
 
17 Key Decision 
 
17.1 No. 
 
18 Key Decision Reference 
 
18.1 Not applicable. 
 
19 Background Papers 
 
19.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not include 
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act : 

 
None. 
 

20 Appendices 
 
20.1 Appendix A Copy of Delegated Report 
 Appendix B Copy of Objections 
 
  

Page 6



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  5 

21 Proposal 
 
21.1 It is proposed the original scheme be approved and the additional ‘no waiting at any time’ 

restrictions proposed for Spindle Mews and Acorn Street be approved and advertised, in 
accordance with the following schedule. 
 
  

Add to from the Oldham Borough Council (Lees area) Consolidation Order Prohibition of Waiting 
Amendment No 15 Order 2017 

 

 
 
 
  

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 

Item No 
 

Length of Road 
 

Duration Exemptions No Loading 

 
 

Acorn Street, Lees 
(North East Side) 
 
From a point 48 metres south 
east of Spindle Mews for a 
distance of 35 metres in a 
generally south easterly 
easterly direction 
 

 
At Any Time 

 
 

 

 Acorn Street, Lees 
(North East Side) 
 
From a point 15 metres north 
west of Elder Road to a point 15 
metres north west of St Johns 
Street. 
 

 
At Any Time 

  

 Spindle Mews 
(West Side) 
 
From its junction with Acorn 
Street for a distance of 26 
metres in a northerly direction 
 

 
At Any Time 

  

Page 7



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  6 

 

Page 8



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  7 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

COPY OF DELEGATED REPORT 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 9



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  8 

 
  

Page 10



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  9 

 

Page 11



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  10 

 

Page 12



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  11 

 

Page 13



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  12 

 

Page 14



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  13 

 

Page 15



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  14 

 
  

Page 16



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  15 

 

Page 17



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  16 

 

Page 18



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  17 

 

Page 19



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

COPY OF OBJECTIONS 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  19 

 
  

Page 21



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  20 

 
  

Page 22



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  21 

 
  

Page 23



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  22 

 
  

Page 24



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  23 

 
  

Page 25



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  24 

 
  

Page 26



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  25 

 

 

Page 27



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  26 

 
  

Page 28



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  27 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  28 

 

 

 
  

Page 30



 

TM3/868 g:\common\dec_rec\pet\359 21.05.20 

  29 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Acorn Street, Lees - Objections to Traffic Management Scheme

